
Growth & Prosperity Scrutiny Panel 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Growth & Prosperity Scrutiny Panel to be 
held as follows for the transaction of the business indicated.

Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer

DATE: Monday, 9 March 2020

TIME: 6.00 pm (Briefing for Panel Members at 5.30pm)

VENUE: Committee Room 4, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting. 

AGENDA

1  Apologies for absence. 

2  Declarations of interest. 

3  Salix Homes - Progress against the Transfer Offer Document 
(Lee Sugden, Chief Executive, Salix Homes). 

(Pages 1 - 22)

4  Items for information: 

4a Briefing Note on Bus Lane Enforcement. (Pages 23 - 26)

4b Development across City Centre Salford. (Pages 27 - 44)

5  Minutes of meeting held on 27 January 2020 and matters arising. 

6  Work Programme. (Pages 45 - 46)

7  Any other business. 

8  Date and time of next meeting - Monday 23 March 2020, 6.00pm 
(Briefing for Panel Members at 5.30pm). 

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 2602
Claire Edwards, Democratic Services, 
claire.edwards@salford.gov.uk

E-Mail: claire.edwards@salford.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



1

REPORT TO: Growth & Prosperity Scrutiny 
Committee
MEETING DATE: 9 March 2020 
CLASSIFICATION: Part 1 

Progress against the Transfer Offer Document

1. Purpose

1.1 To provide the Growth & Prosperity Scrutiny Committee with an update on 
progress against the commitments contained in the transfer offer document to 
customers.

2. Executive Summary

2.1 On the 23rd March 2015, at the point of transfer from Salford City Council (SCC) 
to Salix Homes Limited, the existing tenants had voted on whether they supported 
the transfer. This vote was made based on an ‘Offer Document’ outlining the 
realities of the transfer occurring/not-occurring.

2.2 As part of the Offer Document, Salix Homes made a number of commitments as 
to what they would provide should the transfer be successful. Salix Homes, in 
partnership with SCC, has identified the specific commitments made within the 
transfer document. These have been split into 6 distinct areas of operation:

 Housing improvement  and investment
 Support services
 Safeguarding and Anti-Social Behaviour
 Direct Services
 Customer & Employee engagement
 Rents

2.3 Based on current performance, the 5 year offer document commitments have been 
delivered on time.

3. Recommendation

3.1 That the Committee notes the achievements in delivering the promises to 
customers outlined in the Transfer Offer Document.

4. Report

4.1 On the 23rd March 2015, Salix Homes became a stand-alone Housing 
Association, having previously been an Arms-Length Management Organisation. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



2

This change of status was as a result of the transfer of the ownership of 8,500 
residential properties from Salford City Council (SCC) to Salix Homes Limited.

4.2 In order for this transfer to occur, the existing tenants of the transferred properties 
were asked to vote on whether they supported the transfer. In support of this, SCC 
produced an ‘Offer Document’ outlining the realities of the transfer occurring/not-
occurring.

4.3 As part of the Offer Document, Salix Homes made a number of commitments as 
to what they would provide should the transfer be successful. These were typically 
around specific levels of investment and improvement works to be completed to 
the homes and the surrounding environs, continuation of existing service provision 
and consultations with residents about specific proposed changes.

4.4 SCC, in partnership with Salix Homes,  identified the specific commitments made 
within the transfer document. These have been split into 6 distinct areas of 
operation:

 Housing investments and improvement
 Support services
 Safeguarding and Anti-Social Behaviour
 Direct Services
 Customer & Employee engagement
 Rents

4.5 Each of the individual commitments is reported against, providing the relevant data 
to demonstrate Salix Homes’ efforts to deliver the promises made to SCC and its 
customers. 

4.6 Appendix A includes each of the specific commitments outlined within the Offer 
Document, the progress that has been made against them to date and the lead 
officer responsible for their delivery.

4.7 It was identified, as part of the ongoing monitoring of the commitments, some of 
the original assumptions relating to the installation of major components such as 
windows, doors, kitchens and bathrooms needed to be reviewed and revised 
accordingly as a result of the increased reliability and accuracy of Salix Homes 
stock condition data. 

4.8 The specific numbers detailed in the offer document commitments were derived 
from the councils 20% stock condition survey, used for stock transfer purposes. 
However, the increase in the accuracy of the stock condition data, currently 90% 
of all properties surveyed, highlighted a number of anomalies in component 
replacement requirements. 

4.9 Following discussions with the council about reviewing the individual 
commitments, whilst ensuring the overall commitment of investing £75m in  

Page 2



3

properties to acheive100% decency, was delivered by 2020, a number of revisions 
were made. 

5. Financial and VFM Implications

5.1 Delivery of the Offer Document promises during the period 2015-2020 required 
significant budget expenditure which has been reported to Salix Homes Board and 
SCC for monitoring throughout the five-year period. 

6. Stakeholder Consultation

8.1 A detailed communications strategy was developed as part of the Salix Homes 
transfer bid, in addition to a consultation strategy with customers. Consultation 
with key stakeholders has been ongoing throughout the delivery of offer 
document commitments. 

7. Privacy and/or Equality Impact Assessment Required

9.1 There is no processing of personal data or equality implications directly linked to 
this report, however, Privacy and Equality Impact Assessments are considered 
across the service areas detailed in the Offer Document Commitments. 

8. Appendix

8.1 Appendix A – Offer Document Progress

9. Report Author and Contact

9.1 Sue Sutton – Deputy Chief Executive
9.2 Email: Sue Sutton – sue.sutton@salixhomes.org or telephone: if Members have 

any questions before the meeting.

Page 3

mailto:sue.sutton@salixhomes.org


This page is intentionally left blank



Offer Document Progress Report 

Specific Commitment 
Housing Improvement & 
Investments

Progress update Responsible 
Officer

1.

£75 million investment in the first five years 
improving homes and neighbourhoods.
All homes to have achieved decent homes 
by 2020 including: Replacement windows, 
external doors, kitchens & bathrooms, CH 
systems/boilers, smoke detectors, 
roof/cavity wall insulation, electrical wiring 
and external works – as required.

£77.84 of investment works delivered of a five-year programme.  Year 5 
works currently in progress.

1374 properties have had windows replaced 
2857 properties have had new external doors 
1953 kitchens have been replaced 
1563 bathrooms have been replaced 
1656 boilers have been replaced 
495 central heating systems replaced 
2428 electrical upgrades / rewires completed 
2004 homes have had replacement smoke detectors
1712 properties have had insulation upgrades completed 

Service Director 
Investment

2. 

£14.2 million spent improving high-rise 
blocks over 30 years

£25.56m invested on high rise properties Magnolia, Mulberry and 
Sycamore Court, Albion Towers, Canon Green Court and Fitzwarren 
Court. 

We have completed the external works on 387 high rise flats against a 
target of 392.  All Decent Homes Works competed with the external 
works are ongoing on the remaining high rise, Fitzwarren Court and 
Canon Green Court

Service Director 
Investment

3. £4.6 million spent on non-traditional homes 
in the next five years

£2.1m invested in non-traditional properties Weaste Steel estate, 
Rockley Gardens, Ailsa House, Duchy, Kersal Cell and Springbank

Service Director 
Investment

4. Disabled Adaptations - £3.2 million set 
aside for disabled adaptations in the first 
five years 

£3.14m of disabled adaptations delivered to date as from 2015 Service Director 
Investment

5. 
Investment into sheltered housing 

Salix Homes is continuing its decent homes works to our sheltered 
schemes. However, this will complement a planned remodelling and 
selected demolition and re-provision of our over 55 offer

Service Director 
Investment 

P
age 5



6

Specific Commitment 
Housing Improvement & 
Investments

Progress update Responsible 
Officer

6 Development and implementation of an 
investment programme for garages, shops 
and other non-housing assets.  

Works have completed on 5 empty shops on Chapel road, Prestwich 
converting them into rentable flats and one on Eccles new road. 137 
Lower Broughton road. We are reviewing a shop on Nine Acre court and 
29 St Bartholomews Drive

Service Director 
Investment

7 A £10 million investment programme over 
the next five years to maintain and repair 
fencing, paths, gates and external areas 
on estates.  

Environmental upgrades including fencing, paths, gates and external 
areas have been completed at a cost of £6.9m to date

Service Director 
Investment

8 Salix Homes will deliver improvements and 
upgrades to lighting and CCTV in the 
areas where you live

Programmed communal lighting and CCTV upgrades have been 
completed on Magnolia, Sycamore Courts, Mulberry Court and Albion 
towers, Fitzwarren Court and Canon Green has commenced 

Service Director 
Investment

P
age 6



7

Specific Commitment 
Support Services

Progress to date Responsible 
Officer

9 Existing support services to continue 
including:
 Annual “Keep Warm, Keep Well” 

scheme 
 Money Advice service
 Customer Liaison during improvement 

works

Salix Homes continue to work in partnership with the council to 
develop its Winter Welfare Strategy.

We maintain a list of our most vulnerable customers, in advance of 
the winter months we prepare assistance, including blankets and 
warm clothing, that is then distributed to tenants who require this 
assistance following welfare checks. Since transfer we have delivered 
more than 500 Keep warm Keep Well winter packs.

Winter welfare support is new embedded as a cyclical process in our 
neighbourhood teams.

Our income management team has been set up with a dedicated 
Money Advice Officer and specialist Universal Credit support officers. 
Since transfer the team have supported customers to access in 
excess of £2m in unclaimed benefit payments.

There is a dedicated tenant liaison team on each major improvement 
project to ensure high levels of customer satisfaction. Specific tenant 
support is also provided by Salix Homes’ neighbourhood officers. One 
additional TLO has been employed to deliver the direct delivery works 

The percentage of customers satisfied with investment work is a key 
quarterly indicator within Salix Homes’ Performance Framework, 
measured by a post work survey. Current customer satisfaction is 
currently at 99.74%

Service Director 
Communities

10 Continued investment of resources into 
helping local people find work and/or 
access to training opportunities – 
including working with other local 
employers/colleagues to create training 
opportunities for local people  

Salix Homes’ dedicated Skills and Work manager continues to work 
with local partners to identify training and employment opportunities 
for local people.

Salix have entered into a partnership with the Skills Company who 
deliver the NVQ training for apprenticeships.  We also work in 

Service Director – 
Communities

P
age 7



8

Specific Commitment 
Support Services

Progress to date Responsible 
Officer

partnership with other local housing associations to increase the 
number and scope of job clubs.  To this end a part time job club co-
ordinator post has been jointly funded by the group.  

Salix has also maintained its links with local schools to provide work 
experience opportunities, career advice and apprenticeship 
opportunities.  

The Salford Housing Partnership Group lead by Salix Homes meets 
regularly and continues to fund the part-time Job Club Co-ordinator 
role.  The group have also worked on a range of other initiatives 
including:

 Working with employers with live vacancies to assist local 
residents to access and secure them.  These have included; 
Manchester Airport, The Trafford Centre, Royal Mail and 
Primark.  .

 Delivering quarterly employment drop-ins that help jobseekers’ 
make contact with a variety of agencies able to support them

 Delivering training aimed at engaging customers that are 
some distance from the labour market including; Barista, 
Paediatric First Aid, First Aid and Look Good Feel Good.  (The 
third Look Good Feel Good run this year is in progress and 
First Aid is planned in for the New Year).

 Since transfer Salix Homes has supported over 1200 local 
people into skills, work and training opportunities.

11 Expansion of apprenticeship 
programmes, linked to the investment in 
new and existing homes and by 
expanding the total apprenticeship 
scheme for its grounds maintenance 
team over the first 5 years. This could 
generate an additional 166 new 

Salix Homes has teamed up with organisations across the city to help 
them build themselves a bright future through the Build Salford 
initiative. 

Build Salford is a traineeship programme which supports 16 to 24-
year-olds into a career in construction. 

Service Director – 
Communities

P
age 8



9

Specific Commitment 
Support Services

Progress to date Responsible 
Officer

apprenticeship opportunities in total over 
30 years      

Since its launch in 2017, it has helped over 118 young people find 
training, apprenticeships and permanent jobs in the city’s construction 
industry. 

Since transfer Salix Homes has continued to invest in it’s own 
successful apprenticeship programme covering a wide range of 
functions in the organisation including construction trades, 
environmental services and grounds maintenance, administration, 
contact centre, HR and neighbourhood services (GEM programme).

12 Salix Homes will:
create a fund that local people can bid for 
to help improve neglected open spaces

Salix Homes continues to encourage local people to have pride and 
respect for the area where they live and the local environment. Each 
year we hold an annual Love Your Neighbourhood week. Where 
residents are encouraged to get involved in a range of activities 
including neighbourhood clean ups and community cohesion events.

Our Neighbourhood Teams continue to support communities through 
our Springboard Grant to deliver community led projects that enhance 
neglected open spaces and the local environment. 

Since transfer we have supported more than 100 community groups 
and committed in excess of 400k through our Springboard Grant.

Each year as part of our Love Your Neighbourhood week we launch a 
campaign for residents to nominate their ‘Springboard Hero’ where 
they can vote for their favourite community project funded through 
Springboard. Each year a further £1000 grant is awarded to the 
project receiving the most votes from residents. 

Service Director - 
Communities

13 Management of empty properties:
Salix shall provide to the Council property 
management services, including lettings, 

There are currently 66 properties leased to the council under the 
lease and repair scheme.  There is a nomination agreement in place 
declaring the Council have exclusive nomination rights on these 

P
age 9



10

Specific Commitment 
Support Services

Progress to date Responsible 
Officer

of private properties leased to the Council 
under the lease and repair scheme.
Either Party may terminate the Services 
by giving not less than 6 months’ notice in 
writing, such notice not to take effect 
before 31 March 2018: 

Joint audit, review and quarterly 
monitoring meetings should have been 
taking place

properties.  Salix Homes, through Salix Living, continues to provide 
property management services to these properties.  

Quarterly meetings are scheduled and take place.

14

Pge 77
Pge 78
TA

Nominations/Lettings Agreement
(Council has the right to make 
nominations into 75 percent of Salix's 
Dwellings which are vacant and available 
for letting, in accordance with the 
provisions of the transfer agreement)

Allocations/nominations: Quarterly returns 
reporting on:

- total no. of vacancies - size, type 
& address of dwellings where 
vacancies arise

- the number, size, type and 
addresses of the Dwellings 
offered and let to Applicants or 
Nominees;

- the banding status of successful 
Applicants and Nominees;

- the number, banding status and 
reasons why Applicants and 
Nominees have been bypassed;

- the Dwellings where a notice to 
quit has been received or date for 
possession granted by a court;

Salix Home’s continues to nominate the vast majority of our properties 
through Salford Homesearch. At least 95% of properties have been 
nominated each year since transfer.

We continue to report quarterly on allocations and nominations. Since 
1st April 2019 Salix Homes has let 329 properties through Salford 
Homesearch. This is broken down by the following property type:

Bedsit – 2
Bungalow – 6
Houses – 113 
Maisonette – 7
High Rise – 78
Cottage flat – 64
Low rise – 59

For data relating to banding status / refusals would need to be 
requested via Salford home search – Salix does not hold this data 

We are unable to advise on the numbers for bypassing, but the most 
common reasons are:
Current rent arrears / former tenant arrears 
Criminality or behaviour 
Affordability 

P
age 10



11

Specific Commitment 
Support Services

Progress to date Responsible 
Officer

-  the number and addresses of 
offers rejected and reasons for 
rejection;

Customer refused 
Significant support needs without a support package in place

Specific Commitment
Safeguarding and ASB

Progress to date Responsible 
officer

15 Early intervention to reduce the impact of 
ASB:

- 1st Response security service to 
deal with anti-social behaviour, 
noise nuisance and domestic 
abuse reports 

- Accessible reporting methods 24 
hours a day

- find early resolution to anti-social 
behaviour incidents, 

- support and safeguard victims and 
witnesses (including risk 
management) of ASB

- encourage socially responsible 
behaviour through use of 
restorative justice initiatives

Salix Homes approach to tackling ASB continues to be focused on early 
intervention and prevention and providing support for victims and 
witnesses.

Salix Homes’ Anti-Social Behaviour, Hate Crime and Domestic Abuse 
policy and procedure is reviewed periodically to ensure our approach is 
centred on the victim and is up to date and relevant to current legislation.

The policy and procedure has been built into our CRM system which 
gives Salix Homes a 360° overview of our customers.

In 2019 we have launched our CRM customer portal ‘My Salix’ which 
allows customers to set up their own ASB case and track progress 
through the online portal.

In addition Salix continues to provide 24-hour services through our 
contact centre and 1st Response Team where customers can report ASB 
to us by telephone, e-mail or in person.

Salix has held continuous accreditation of our ASB service through 
HouseMark and Resolve for over 8 years. This ensures that our ASB 
service is performing well and maximising the full range of tools and 
powers provided through the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing 
Act 2014.

Salix Homes continues to use a number of early intervention tools that 
form part of our policy and procedure, including:

Service Director 
Communities

P
age 11



12

Specific Commitment
Safeguarding and ASB

Progress to date Responsible 
officer

• Starter tenancy agreements 
• Acceptable Behaviour Agreements (ABA’s)
• Tenancy Warnings
• Partner meetings to develop joint approaches (LPDG, CSRT etc.)
• Referrals to partner (support) agencies and Salford’s Bridge
• 1st Response Team out of hours ASB response (217 cases 

created and responded to out of hours in the period)
• Joint visits with the Police 
• Policies that supplement our tenancy agreement around pet and 
vehicle nuisance
• Intensive neighbourhood action plans (targeting ASB hot spots)

In 2016 Salix Homes launched annual bespoke Neighbourhood Action 
Plans as part of our introduction of neighbourhood working and increased 
visibility through agile working. The plans are focused on customer 
priorities identified through customer consultation and highlight the 
interventions we have put in place to reduce and tackle ASB.

Salix Homes continues to carry victim and perpetrator risk assessments 
as part of our ASB case management process to ensure vulnerability 
issues are fully considered.

Our neighbourhood teams have a number of officers who are trained 
mediators and are qualified to conduct Restorative Justice conferences. 
Where a high level of independence and neutrality is required we use the 
services of an external provider ROC, to facilitate Restorative Justice 
Conferences.

Salix Homes has a dedicated Safeguarding lead and a clear 
Safeguarding Policy and Procedure. All employees undertake mandatory 
safeguarding training which is refreshed annually through our digital 
learning platform ‘Buzz Learn’. 

P
age 12



13

Specific Commitment
Safeguarding and ASB

Progress to date Responsible 
officer

16 More serious cases of ASB dealt with 
promptly, using the full range of legal 
powers available.

Salix Homes takes a zero tolerance approach to all forms of anti-social 
behaviour (ASB) and harassment. Since transfer our neighbourhood 
teams have dealt with in excess of 2400 ASB cases.

For the most serious cases of ASB involving any threats or use of 
violence etc. Salix Homes has a specialist community safety team 
supported by a contract with a firm of solicitors. Since transfer the team 
have successfully obtained in excess of 400 legal actions including ex-
parte injunctions, with notice injunctions, possession orders, NOSP’s and 
Court undertakings.

Service Director 
Communities

17 Engage with wider partnerships (including 
GMP) in order to enable a range of joint 
initiatives to tackle wider city 
issues/concerns i.e. gang related issues, 
crime, troubled families, county lines and 
the use of CCTV etc

Salix Homes continues to maintain its strategic and operational, crime 
and disorder partnerships within the City.
Salix Homes continues to be represented at all levels of the partnership 
including:

The Bridge strategic development
Partnership Delivery Group (PDG)
Gold level partnership meetings
Project GULF
Local Partnership Delivery Group (LPDG)
Community Safety Referral Team (CSRT)
Greater Manchester Housing Providers Meeting

Service Director 
Communities

18 Focussed work with young people to:
- maximise engagement and 

involvement in meaningful activity,
- Funding to projects that benefit 

young people
- Signposting/support to young 

people and parents who may be 
struggling

Salix Homes continue to support the council through its Neglect Strategy. 
Our neighbourhood officers are all trained to spot the warning signs of 
neglect and children who may be at risk. We have well established, 
effective relationships with Children’s Services and work in partnership  
to support families to identify positive influences in their wider family 
make-up that can bring about beneficial change to the family unit.

Salix Homes works closely with partners to seek match funding for 
projects. Working with Sport England we secured £5000 match funding 
from Sport England for initiatives aimed at diverting young people away 
from negative behaviours towards positive, healthy activity. An initial pilot 

Service Director 
Communities

P
age 13



14

Specific Commitment
Safeguarding and ASB

Progress to date Responsible 
officer

in the Ordsall area proved successful and this is now being rolled out to 
our other neighbourhoods.

Salix Homes has established a youth panel ‘Boost 4 Youth’ who act as a 
voice for other young people, a vehicle to consult on young people’s 
challenges and needs. Since the launch in 2018, the panel have worked 
hard to recruit other young people to the panel, were finalists in the Spirit 
of Salford Awards and in August 2019 developed and delivered their first  
Salix Homes Youth Conference which saw over 10 partner organisations 
come together and deliver workshops to over 50 young people around 
issues that affect young people. These included workshops on Knife 
Crime, Mental Health, Body Image and Health and Wellbeing.

We have continued to provide a youth bursary fund, which allows other 
young people from across Salford to submit application for up to £500 to 
help them aspire and achieve a goal linked to education, employment, 
training or other initiatives to improve their community. Since Boost 4 
Youth was launched we have committed in excess of 40k in grants to 
youth lead initiatives.

Salix Homes have committed to again take part in the 2019 ‘Crucial 
Crew’ initiative. Crucial Crew is a multi-agency safety event aimed at 
primary school children aged 10 to 11 yrs. It has been designed to 
provide children with life skills that aim to help young people to keep 
themselves and others safe. It is expected that1889 children from 47 
schools across Salford will participate in Crucial Crew.  

Specific Commitment
Direct Services

Progress to date Responsible 
Officer

19 Salix Homes will continue to offer a 
tenants’ home contents insurance 

Salix Homes continues to offer a tenant’s home contents insurance 
scheme for their customers, as agreed.

Service Director -  
Finance

P
age 14



15

Specific Commitment
Direct Services

Progress to date Responsible 
Officer

scheme
20 Salix Homes will provide a locally based 

housing service which will be available 24 
hours a day, 365 days per year

Salix Homes continues to provide a locally based housing service 24 
hours a day, 365 days per year.  

Executive Director 
of Operations

21 Emergency Repairs would be responded 
to within two hours with a further 
response within 24 hours

In the period April 2019 – 31 January 2020 – 99.56% of emergency 
repairs were responded to within 2 hours. 

During this period 4437 emergency repairs were completed. 

Executive Director 
of Operations

22 Urgent Repairs would be attended to 
within three working days. 

We continue to attend urgent repairs within three working days. Executive Director 
of Operations

23 Non-urgent repairs would be completed 
within ten days of being reported. 

Between April 2019 and end of January 2020 it took on average 16.19 
days to complete 22,788 non urgent repairs. 

Executive Director 
of Operations

24 Diagnose repairs, which will increase the 
number of jobs completed on the first visit  

The number of jobs completed right first time remains a key 
performance indicator for the business, regularly scrutinised by Board. 

84% of repairs were completed right first time – this includes all 
repairs including those requiring follow on work.

Executive Director 
of Operations

25  Routine repairs would be completed 
within 40 working days of being reported. 
For example kitchen replacements 
outside of the Decent Homes 
Programme.

The performance for these repairs is now included in the non-urgent 
repairs to ensure repairs are appointed to meet customers availability 
and convenience. 

Executive Director 
of Operations

26  Salix Homes will have clear complaints 
procedures, and will investigate all 
complaints in a way that helps to find 
ways of improving the service and 
preventing the same problems happening 
again

Salix Homes has a clear complaints policy and procedure place.  
During 2019/20 we received 121 formal complaints, of which 52 
complaints were upheld or partially upheld. 86% of the complaints 
received in the period were successfully resolved at stage one of the 
complaints process.

Service Director 
Customers 

27 Grounds Maintenance: Introducing 
planned grounds maintenance; 
Reviewing the maintenance of the 
grounds around apartment blocks and 
other communal areas to make 

A new Environmental Services Model incorporating additional 
resources was introduced in 2018/19 and has now been fully 
embedded.

Since the new service was launched satisfaction with our grounds 

Service Director – 
Communities 

P
age 15



16

Specific Commitment
Direct Services

Progress to date Responsible 
Officer

improvements. maintenance and upkeep of communal areas has steadily risen. 
Current performance is exceeding target with 71.265 of customers 
rating the standard of their apartment block or neighbourhood as 
‘excellent’.

In July 2019 we also invested in a new mini-sweeper which is helping 
to improve the look and cleanliness of our streets and 
neighbourhoods.

Salix continues to improve green spaces across our stock by carrying 
out community clean up days and transforming ‘grot spots’ through 
the use of wildflower meadows and other horticultural initiatives.

28 Increasing recycling work with 
communities to raise awareness of the 
damage done by fly tipping   

Salix Homes introduced a furniture recycling scheme in 2018/19 
which assists tenants in obtaining low cost second hand furniture, 
rather than using high interest services such as Bright House etc. This 
supports our green agenda by reducing the volume we send to land-
fill for disposal and reduces our tipping costs whilst allowing us to help 
customers who are in financial hardship.

We have continued to expand this service as we have obtained items 
for recycling. Since launching the project, we have recycled approx. 
75.5 tonnes of furniture that would otherwise have gone to landfill 
from our voids and blocks. This equates to over £20k saved from 
tipping costs alone. To date the scheme has supported more than 100 
customers in financial hardship with over 500 items of furniture.
In August this year we began a programme of refuse chute closures 
at our high-rise blocks. This will increase recycling rates on high-rise 
blocks where household refuse has traditionally been disposed of via 
the chutes located on the landings. This project began on Canon 
Green Court and will be rolled out gradually, initially at blocks 
undergoing major improvement works.

Service Director – 
Communities

P
age 16



17

Specific Commitment
Direct Services

Progress to date Responsible 
Officer

29 Continue to  provide concierge and door 
entry systems in blocks of flats

Salix Homes has continued to provide a concierge and door entry 
system at blocks of flats.

Service Director 
Customers

30

Pges:
525,529 
533
TA

Care on Call:
- Quarterly performance monitoring.
- Contract end date 31st March 

2016 unless extended under the 
review process set out in 
paragraph 14.

- Minimum quarterly monitoring 
meetings.

- Performance Indicators
97.5% of all calls to be answered 
within 60 seconds
99% all calls to be answered 
within 180 seconds

Current Care on Call SLA was introduced following the sheltered 
housing review in 2017. The service currently provided deals 
specifically with lifeline alarm monitoring and an I’m Ok button 
function.

These services are paid for by customers through a service charge to 
Salix Homes.  The current SLA is due to expire in March 2020. 

Performance of the service is closely monitored by our 
Neighbourhood Manager (Housing Projects) and is meeting 
expectations. We have extended the SLA until 31/03/20.

Service Director 
Communities

31

Pge 
562 
TA

Pendleton Security and Concierge 
service:
- Contract end date - 1st April 2016   
   unless extended under the review 
  process (6.1)
- Annual reviewed inc. negotiation of a   
  future services agreement, future 
  options for the service, price, calculation 
  of tenant service charges and   
  specifications in the agreement
- Monthly performance reporting 

Interim SLA is in place until consultation being conducted by SCC 
with Pendleton Together and its customers is concluded. 

Service Director 
Customers

Specific Commitment 
Customer & Employee Engagement

Progress to date Responsible 
Officer

33 Salix Homes’ Board and its award winning 
Customer Senate will continue to 
scrutinise and inspect Salix Homes’ 
services 

In April 2018, following receipt of year end customer survey, performance 
and complaints data, the Customer Senate considered a number of 
possible scrutiny topics including:

Executive Director 
of Resources

P
age 17



18

Specific Commitment 
Customer & Employee Engagement

Progress to date Responsible 
Officer

• Community Involvement
• Universal Credit
• Customer Portal
• Environmental Services
• Tenancy Sign Up Process

It was agreed that, with the newly transitioned Environmental Services 
Team needing time to ‘bed in’, the customer portal still to be fully 
developed, the numbers of customers on Universal Credit yet to hit a 
critical mass and community involvement to be addressed via a wider 
review of customer involvement (see 55), Senate would review the 
Tenancy Sign-Up Process.

34 Continued robust tenant engagement - the 
aim being to give tenants even greater say 
than now over the way housing services 
are provided, including:

- Standard setting for services i.e. 
repairs, contractor delivery and 
communal open spaces

- Continued improvement monitoring 
across services

- Engagement with Disability groups
- Service redesign proposals
- Provision of accessible format 

documents / use of sign/language 
interpreters

An independent review of customer and employee engagement was 
undertaken in the summer of 2017, involving customers, employees and 
council representatives.  
The recommendations from the review were presented to Board in 
November 2017.

The recommendations from the review supported the organisations 
approach to customer engagement to ensure tenants can engage and 
influence service delivery and standards, through a menu of options. The 
range of engagement opportunities is: 

• Customer Senate
• Customer Excellence Panel
• Neighbourhood Groups
• Customer Inspectors
• Digital Network
• Investment and development task and finish groups

Executive Director 
of ResourcesP

age 18



19

Specific Commitment 
Customer & Employee Engagement

Progress to date Responsible 
Officer

• Community Connectors
• Neighbourhood Surgeries
• Community Grants
Following a further review, earlier this year, to take account of 
MHCLGs/social Housing Regulator/Green Paper proposals to strengthen 
the customer voice in the governance of housing providers, we have 
introduced a formal customer committee into our governance framework, 
replacing the Customer Excellence Panel and the Senate.
Following an intense publicity campaign we received over 140 
applications for 10 customer committee places.  Two board members 
have been nominated to sit on the committee and will act as the link, and 
provide reassurance to the board, in a similar way to Audit and Growth 
and Development Committee. 10 customers were selected for the 
committee following an open day and interview. Committee members 
attended Salix Homes on 21st January 2020 for an induction day. 
Committee members are currently completing eight module accredited 
training programme.    The committee will operate in shadow mode until 
July 2020.
The Salix Homes Customer Committee will monitor performance against 
the regulatory standards, building safety standards and operational day 
to day performance. They will, if required, commission pieces of scrutiny 
work using our newly formed pool of customers (from the original 
committee applicants) who have expressed a desire to engage in scrutiny 
activities.
In terms of employee engagement, we continue to observe annual 
increases in overall employee satisfaction, we are presently at 85%. The 
one area that slightly dropped was the physical workplace, following this 
we have invested in these locations and are confident this will improve. 
Over the next few months we will be undertaking an internal 
communications review, to gain an improved understanding of what 
works well and what could be better.  Effective communications is an 

P
age 19



20

Specific Commitment 
Customer & Employee Engagement

Progress to date Responsible 
Officer

essential element of engagement.

Specific Commitment
Rent Setting

Progress to date Responsible 
Officer

35 Rents will not increase except in line 
with government rules and the Homes 
and Communities Agency's framework

The summer budget announcement in 2015 said that the rent changes 
for 2016/17 and the following three years would be a 1% reduction and 
this is what Board approved for rents for the financial year 2019/20 at 
their meeting in January 2019. Future rent changes will also be set in 
accordance with government rules and the Regulator of Social Housing’s 
framework. Based on the current position, it is anticipated that a rent 
increase will be applied to rents from April 2020

Service Director - 
Finance

36  Transferring tenants will continue to 
receive four rent free weeks a year as 
long as they are not in arrears.
 

There were four rent-free weeks in 2018/19 being two around Christmas 
and two at the end of the financial year, with a similar pattern being 
followed in 2019/20.

Service Director - 
Finance

Specific Commitment
Services delivered by SCC

Progress to date Responsible 
Officer

37

Pges
512/51
4/812
TA

Cleaning Services delivered by 
SCC:

- Contract end date 31st March 
2018 .The termination period 
will be 6 months’ notice from 
either party

- Quarterly performance 
monitoring

New contract commenced on the 1st June 2018 for 12 months. 
Continuation of the contract for a further 12 months was subject to 
performance. 

Monthly performance audits held by Citywide and Salix Homes officer.
Contract was then extended for a further 12 months on the 1st June 2019.
Monthly performance audits are continuing.

Review of contract to commence Jan 2020.

Lucy Hulmes

Annual Returns and Contract Deadlines for SCC delivered services:

P
age 20



21

38

Pge 724 TA

VAT Shelter Payments:
Annual report on the total of VAT Savings for the previous Financial Year together with details of the calculation and 
supporting evidence thereof, including:
-  a report of any over/underpayment 
The Council or Company (as appropriate) will make such payment to the other by way of adjustment as may be 
required, such payment to be made within 28 days of the Auditor’s report.

External auditor provides this information to SCC not Salix. 

Service 
Director 

Investment

39

Pge 118 TA

Salix Covenants: 
Salix will provide to the Council the data reasonably required to enable the Council to complete its annual returns 
including:
- annual Housing Strategy Statistical Appendix;
-  any assessment of housing needs, 
-  its annual Housing Flows Reconciliation Return;
-  its monitoring returns of National Affordable Housing Programme and/or other Homes and  
  Communities Agency funding programmes at the commencement of developments and on 
  a quarterly basis thereafter;
-  its Care Quality Commission Annual Return on Major Adaptations; 
-  returns monitoring performance contained in the Council’s sustainable community strategy, 
  Council plan and other related plan(s).

Information provided to SCC as and when requested throughout the year to ensure SCC meet its legal./regulatory 
requirements. 

Service 
Director 

Investment

P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1

Briefing Note 

BRIEFING NOTE OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE

TO THE GROWTH & PROSPERITY SCRUTINY PANEL

9th MARCH 2020

TITLE: BRIEFING NOTE ON BUS LANE ENFORCEMENT

RECOMMENDATIONS:  

That the Growth & Prosperity Scrutiny Panel notes the update on Bus Lane 
Enforcement (BLE) across Salford

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

The briefing note sets out the current and proposed BLE regime and provides 
information on associated financial position

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: NONE

KEY DECISION: NO

Page 23

Agenda Item 4a



2

1.0  Details: 

1.1 Currently there are 5 bus lane cameras enforcing the bus lanes across Salford.

1.2 The current enforcement locations and the % number of all PCN’s issued at each 
site are –

1. East Lancashire Road eastbound close to Broadbent Street (15%)
2. East Lancashire Road westbound adjacent Swinton Golf Course (7%)
3. East Lancashire Road eastbound close to Worsley Road (30%)
4. The Crescent eastbound close to Adelphi Street (14%)
5. Chapel Street westbound close to Oldfield Road (34%)
6. Bury Old Road southbound close to Devonshire Street (currently spare 

site)

1.3 The numbers of Penalty Charge Notices (PCNs) generated and income received 
for bus lane contraventions during the last 5 years were as follows:

Year                            Number          Income
                                    of PCNs              £
                                                                     
2015                            12,978           374,343
2016                            12,709           339,417
2017                            17,500           397,017
2018                            15,867           427,809
2019                            16,814           464,286

1.4  The costs associated with Bus Lane Enforcement (annual)

In house monitoring of bus lane contraventions by SCC CCTV team  £110,000

Costs associated with checking site compliance and associated works       £5,500
  £115,500

Other one-off costs to purchase cameras and for relocation of cameras as part of 
the rotation process – 

Camera cost - £13,500
Camera move - £1,500

There are further staffing costs included within the Parking Services Team 
associated with the back-office processing of contraventions and progressing 
PCN’s through the statutory requirements that include challenges and dealing with 
Traffic Penalty Tribunal for those PCN’s that reach this point.

1.5We have looked at the bus lanes currently operating across Salford and determined 
a number of additional locations where it is feasible to install new enforcement 
locations. This will ensure increased enforcement presence and will allow us to 
rotate the cameras we have on a rota basis so as to ensure compliance across the 

Page 24



3

network. Where new sections of bus lane are introduced in Salford then we shall 
be looking to build in the installation of new enforcement locations as part of the 
main contract such as with the Broad Street bus gate as part of the SBNI project. 

The majority of these new sites should be operational in the next couple of months. 
They are – 

1. East Lancashire Road eastbound close to Shield Drive
2. East Lancashire road eastbound on the approach to the TfGM Park and 

Ride site
3. East Lancashire Road westbound on the approach to Lancaster Road
4. The Crescent eastbound near to Salford Crescent Train Station
5. Broad Street westbound at new bus gate as part of SBNI scheme

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  Local Transport Plan

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: N/A

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Low – the implementation and expansion of BLE will ensure 
Bus Lane compliance across the network, so reducing congestion and improving public 
transport journey times

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS; N/A 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS   Martin Anglesey Contact: Tel. (0161 793 3248) 

The estimated cost of Commando sockets / technical file and relocating one camera 
in 2019/20 is £11,000 which is already forecasted in the account and is within budget.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS N/A

HR IMPLICATIONS: There are no HR implications associated with this report. 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: None

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES:  All

CONTACT OFFICER: Andy Devine  Tel. 4859

Salford City Council
Civic Centre
Chorley Road 
Swinton

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



1

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR PLACE 

TO THE GROWTH & PROSPERITY SCRUTINY PANEL 

9th MARCH 2020

FOR BRIEFING

TITLE: SUMMARY UPDATE ON DEVELOPMENT ACROSS CITY CENTRE 
SALFORD – JANUARY 2020

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the Panel note the contents of this report and the continued progress made to 
deliver the growth and development strategy for the City.

DETAILS:

1. Background

1.1. This report provides a snapshot update between the period October 2018 
(period, previously reported) to end January 2020.  This report focuses on the 
urban part of the city centre referred to here as City Centre Salford and also 
comments on the expanding edge to this. 

1.2. The regeneration context for the city continues to be informed by a series of 
economic demand studies, existing and refreshed development frameworks, 
emerging guides for new public investment and purely private sector 
investment across numerous sectors. 

1.3. As previously reported our development work deals with current investment 
underway now, on site, as well as looking to the future beyond 5 and 10 years. 
The current, visible investment and construction has come about through 
many years of preparation and pre development planning with the private 
sector.  Salford City Council has invested in this way of working and we 
continue to look beyond the present cycles of investment to secure the 
continued growth the city needs in the long term.

1.4. The report does not provide information on all development activity through 
the planning process nor the very significant associated infrastructure 
investment nor all business & inward investment activities in the City. It is 

Page 27

Agenda Item 4b



2

intended as a snapshot of development activity in the City Centre where 
Council resources in the form of: officer time; public/private partnerships; and, 
public and private sector funding is strategically significant. 

1.5. Updates on these are as follows: 

2. City Centre Salford 

2.1. City Centre Salford is a pivotal part of Salford’s economic growth strategy and 
a longstanding strategic priority for the Council - it is also recognised in the 
GMSF as one of the priority areas for growth within GM.  The regional centre 
has experienced significant levels of economic growth in recent years and is 
undergoing a fundamental transformation of physical development, economic 
activity and increasing population density.  

2.2. Economic growth is projected to continue with employment and population 
estimates increasing at some of the highest rates across GM - driving the 
continuing requirement for supply of residential and commercial spaces. Over 
the next 25 years the area has the potential to grow significantly, with up to 
12,500 new jobs being created, over 120,000 m2 of employment floor space 
developed and almost 14,000 new homes built with population growth of over 
20,000 new residents.

2.3. As a result of strong growth drivers and our strategic approach to shape 
comprehensive regeneration and partnership working, the City Centre Salford 
strategic growth area, in 2018/19, reported a significant amount of investment 
activity including:

 1,332 residential units completed
 60,000 sq.ft commercial floorspace completed
 £303m private sector investment
 £1.9m additional council tax receipts
 £373,000 additional business rates receipts

2.4. As the indicators show, there is significant development occurring within City 
Centre Salford.  There is also a strong pipeline of activity including schemes 
with planning permission secured and those which are on site - witnessed by 
the cranes dominating the skyline.  However even with a strong pipeline there 
remains a projected undersupply of development at the regional core.

2.5. Development from Greengate through Central Salford to the University and 
the Crescent is well advanced in terms of partnerships, investment and 
delivery of high and medium density housing, Grade A office floor space and 
a range of associated service sector, including food and beverage, some 
refurbishment and other mixed use. There is still however much to do to 
complete all developments as further phases and infill sites come through the 
planning system. 

2.6. There are a myriad of developers and landowners in this part of the city, some 
with mature working relationships regulated through development agreements 

Page 28



3

and partnerships with the Council and others more informal through master 
plans and regeneration strategies. Our objective is to ensure the best quality 
places continue to be built out and delivered for residents and workers in 
Salford.

Greengate including Embankment

2.7. In May 2018 an updated Regeneration Strategy (GRS) was adopted by the 
council for the Greengate area following a period of statutory consultation. 
This Strategy builds on the principles of its predecessors to ensure policy 
framework for the area is up-to-date, robust and provides clear direction for 
delivery of development and public spaces within the area. The strategy is 
focused on delivery of a successful, vibrant community that supports culture; 
heritage, active ground floor uses and public open spaces. 

2.8. The scale and pace of development in Greengate is significant, the strategy 
identifies a number of opportunity sites for future delivery of development of 
commercial, residential and public spaces.  Following the adoption of the GRS 
in May 2018 we have seen an accelerated increase in developer interest, pre-
application enquires and planning applications.  

2.9. A summary of recent activity is below;  

Recently Completed Development 

 Renaker Build, Anaconda Cut, 2019 – 349 apartments
 Urban Splash, House, Springfield Lane, 2019 – Phase 1 - 71 town houses 

 Salboy, Local Blackfriars, 2019 – 380 apartments and town houses 

On Site Development 

 Salford City Council / Ask Developments, Embankment 100 – 165,000 
square feet grade A office accommodation – April 2020 completion

 Select Property Group, City Suites 2 – 147 serviced apartments – Q1 2021 
completion 

 Select Property Group, Laurence Place – 209 apartments – Q1 2021 
completion 

 Select Property Group, Exchange Point – 147 apartments – Q1 2021 
completion 

 The Elliot Group, The Residence – 303 apartments – This scheme was 
scheduled for Q1 2021 completion however work has recently been put 
on hold as the developer is facing funding difficulties.  They are currently 
working to raise further financial support for the scheme.  

 Urban Splash / Property Alliance Group, Phase 2 “Uptown” – 156 
apartments – Completion 2021/22

Page 29



4

Future Anticipated Development

 One Heritage Property Developments, One Heritage Tower - planning 
consent approved for 55 storey tower of 544 apartments, including public 
realm and highway improvements – Start on site anticipated late 2020

 Salboy, Copper Works and Queen Street – planning consent approved for 
104 apartments, with adjacent site submitted for planning approval for 115 
apartments, to be delivered as a combined site

 Renaker Build, Hybrid planning application submitted for planning 
approval for next three phases of high rise development, circa 1,500 
residential units over three phases.  This application secures delivery of 
essential public realm including Ph1 Greengate Park, Greengate 
Boulevard and Collier Square 

 Progressive Living, Gorton Street – detailed pre planning discussions 
underway with planning application anticipated February 2020 – mixed 
use scheme of 172 bed hotel and co living space

2.10. As evidenced above, the development pipeline across Greengate remains 
strong with a significant number of residential units expected to be delivered 
in the next ten years across a number of high density schemes. Surrounding 
these development completions, there are further opportunities offered by 
underutilised land such as the surface car parks, older industrial premises and 
vacant railway arches.  Over the coming months and years our priorities for 
this neighbourhood will be to: continue to work with land owners to support 
future development delivery in line with our aspirations set out in the GRS; 
secure a high density of development appropriate to the area’s central 
location, help to provide a vibrant atmosphere; and, create a distinctive and 
attractive area by respecting and taking full advantage of the area’s historic 
significance and heritage assets, including the historic market cross area, river 
frontage, viaducts and historic street pattern.  

2.11. As growth radiates from the regional core, we have seen an increase in pre-
application enquiries beyond the boundaries covered by GRS; further 
demonstrating the strong demand and developer pipeline.  This area will be 
subject to similar visioning work and potential future development strategy 
covering the area between Greengate and Central Salford, known as Chapel 
Wharf.     

Public Realm

2.12. Of significant importance to the success of this neighbourhood will be the 
delivery of high quality public realm.  As set out in the GRS, this will include a 
new Greengate Park and the creation of Greengate Boulevard to link the 
existing Greengate Square together with the new park, and Market Cross to 
the revitalised Collier Street Baths.  The recently adopted regeneration 
strategy is focused on delivery and as such updated the layout of some of 
these proposed public spaces in the area. The predominant change being the 
shape of Greengate Park. 

Page 30



5

2.13. Since the GRS was adopted we have continued to work with developers to 
secure delivery of our ambitions.  To date this has resulted in great success 
with Renaker Build Ltd (RBL) purchasing land (former burial ground) to deliver 
Ph1 of Greengate Park (Appendix 2).  This is a significant step in the delivery 
of the overall vision of the GRS and a bold step taken by the private sector on 
a site with no commercial development potential and significant risk 
associated to the historic burial uses and potential structural liabilities.  Since 
taking ownership RBL have taken positive steps completing detailed 
archaeological site investigations which have informed the park design.  RBL 
have now submitted a detailed planning application that will realise the 
delivery of PH1 of Greengate Park.  We have also negotiated that the park will 
be maintained by the developer and be accessible to the public in perpetuity.  

2.14. Concept designs have been completed for some of the proposed public 
spaces including Market Cross and Greengate Park PH2 (Appendix 3) and we 
continue to work with land owners to secure these elements of the work.  

2.15. We continue to build S106 planning obligations towards delivery of the 
identified priorities set out in the GRS and have secured significant further 
S106 funds towards this delivery through the recent One Heritage Tower 
planning approval (January 2020).  Positive pre-application discussions 
continue with developers to ensure appropriate mitigation and contributions 
are secured towards delivering aspirations of the GRS.   

2.16. Design works continue for a new pedestrian and cycling crossing and 
associated improvements at Springfield Lane and Trinity Way (Appendix 4). 
This proposal was put forward as part of the Mayor’s Cycling and Walking 
Challenge Fund bid and was successful in securing funding and we are 
working towards the next stages to deliver the junction early 2021.   

2.17. The route of Irwell River Park (IRP) from Irwell Riverside to Greengate has 
been partially reopened following the completion of Anaconda Cut.  This 
reopening has also included a subway improvement scheme that is nearing 
completion.  Sections of IRP remain closed to facilitate the on-going and future 
development of The Residence and future One Heritage Tower.  These 
developments include for provision of a new enhanced high quality public 
realm and riverside walkway to be re-opened on completion of the schemes.

Salford Central including New Bailey & Chapel Street

2.18. In 2006 the Council came together with English Cities Fund (ECf) to enter into 
a Development Agreement to deliver the comprehensive regeneration of the 
Salford Central and Chapel Street area.  Spanning 50 acres, the Salford 
Central masterplan is regenerating Salford’s civic and historic centre, and 
once complete the £1bn scheme aims to create around 11,000 new jobs, 2 
million sq. ft. of offices, 849 new homes, 261,000 sq. ft. retail and leisure 
space, 390 hotel rooms and new links to promote walking and cycling across 
the regional centre.  

Page 31



6

2.19. Central to the masterplan is New Bailey, a vibrant commercial district, adjacent 
to Manchester’s Spinngfields and home to flagship office development, One 
New Bailey. 

2.20. The City Councils development partner, English Cities Fund (ECf) have 
completed ten development plots to date; the most recent activity including:

 A second multi storey car park at Stanley street – 637 spaces
 Riverside House (locally listed) refurbished and extended as 11,500 sq ft 

office space

2.21. ECf are currently on site with six development schemes:
 Two New Bailey Square (190,000 sq ft Grade A office space) - anticipated 

to complete in 2020 
 The third and final build to rent (BTR) Slate Yard building (199 apartments) 

- nearing completion in 2020  
 3 New Bailey (157,000 sq ft Grade A office space) anticipated to complete 

in 2021.  The development is pre-let to HMRC as their regional hub and 
anticipated to be home to in the region of 2,000 staff.

 Plots E7 & E8 – significant vacant plots along Chapel Street to be 
completed in 2021/2022 – Residential development known as Atelier 
providing 11 town houses, 167 apartments and ground floor commercial 
space.  

 Adelpi Street (known as Valette) – Development of 33 town houses, 
similar to their adjacent award winning Timekeepers Square and Carpino 
Place schemes

2.22. As the delivery of the Central Salford masterplan nears completion the final 
sites are now coming forward for planning permission;
 Plot C1 adjacent to the Slate Yard – recently secured planning approval 

for 211 homes.  The approval includes a six-storey podium block and a 
23-storey tower of 86 one-bedroom apartments and 125 two-bedroom 
apartments.  A further 23-storey tower is also planned for plot C2, to be 
linked to the six-storey podium. Plans also include cycle and walkways to 
link the Irwell towpath and Princes Bridge crossing into the wider New 
Bailey site

 Plot 2, fronting New Bailey Street – planning application anticipated early 
spring with Grade A office space to be provided.

2.23. Only a few sites remain to be completed and it is anticipated these will come 
forward in due course as part of the continued partnership with ECf.   

Lettings in New Bailey 

2.24. Lettings for New Bailey have exceeded expectations and again emphasises 
the catalytic impact and success of the partnership with ECf. These successes 
continue and it is anticipated that further significant lettings announcements 

Page 32



7

will be made in the near future.  Activity over the previous 12 months is 
summarised here. 

2.25. One New Bailey is a 125,000 sq ft state-of-the-art BREEAM “excellent” office 
development which was completed in 2016 and is now almost fully let.  
Lettings announced over the last 12 months include

 Foodwell (restaurant/bar use), 5,402 sq ft, opened 2019
 Circle Group (recruitment services), c. 20 staff, 1,892 sq ft
 Shawbrook Bank (financial services), c. 60 staff, 5,258 sq ft

2.26. Two New Bailey Square is a 188,500 sq ft office development nearing 
completion with pre-lets already secured:

 Eversheds Sutherland (multinational law), c. 450 staff, 44,736 sq ft
 BLM (insurance risk and commercial law firm), c. 700 staff, 70,343 sq ft

Additional schemes

2.27. The investment by ECf has had a catalytic effect with additional schemes 
coming forward along Chapel Street including refurbishment of 216 Chapel 
Street into a restaurant and the residential conversion of 230 Chapel Street.  
Both of these are historic buildings positioned within a conservation area and 
have been preserved for many years to come.  We have also seen significant 
investment from local businesses such as the School of Electronic Music on 
Bexley Square and extending to Chapel Street.  Plot E9 fronting Chapel Street 
has also recently secured residential planning consent.  Developer NOVO 
have also recently completed its residential scheme on Chapel Street known 
as Albert Vaults.   

2.28. The Diocese of Salford have recently completed a masterplan which includes 
a comprehensive review of their estate that spans the area fronting Chapel St 
and includes a number of historic heritage buildings including the former 
Education Offices.  It is hoped this masterplan will enhance their existing 
facilities and bring currently vacant buildings back into use (such as the former 
Education Offices) and provide new facilities such as a Song School. 

2.29. Other schemes currently on site include: 
 UK Land and Property - Gore Street scheme, residential scheme with 

commercial ground floor use – due for completion Q2/Q3 2020
 Vita Group (formally Select) Residential led schemes at Riverside and 

Riverview
 Dandara – 995 residential unit scheme at Chapel Wharf – nearing 

completion

Middlewood Locks

Page 33



8

2.30. A 25 acre waterside neighbourhood for living and working, located next to 
Salford Central railway station; combing city living, green space and a range 
of commercial opportunities.  Middlewood Locks is a 25 acre waterside 
neighbourhood being delivered by Scarborough Developments; combing city 
living, green space and a range of commercial opportunities.  The site has 
planning consent for 2.5m sqft of residential and mixed-used development 
including 2,215 new homes and 900,000 sqft of commercial space 
incorporating offices, hotel, retail and leisure uses. Middlewood Locks benefits 
from an attractive remediated canal basin as a central landscaping feature of 
the community, establishing high quality living space with a waterfront park 
and an extensive range of modern facilities to benefit residents and 
commercial occupiers alike.  

 Phase 1, comprising 571 apartments and improvements around the canal 
locks were completed in 2018. 

 Construction works have commenced on Phase 2, a further 546 
apartments over four blocks all of which have been pre-sold to a PRS 
operator. The build is on programme for completion in Q2 2020.  Phase 
two will also include ground-level parking and landscape gardens 
providing connectivity with the public realm and park space surrounding 
the Manchester, Bolton and Bury Canal, around which the development is 
being built.

 Current commercial developments include the opening of a new CO-OP 
convenience food store and Seven Brothers have opened a new bar. 

 The Council and Scarborough Group are currently engaged in discussions 
with the Canals & Rivers Trust in relation to a potential future programme 
of community events. 

Salford Central Station

2.31. Whilst this report is not focussing on infrastructure, Salford Central Station is 
a very significant asset and catalyst for development.  There are planned 
upgrades to the existing platforms 1 & 2 (raising platform levels, new canopies 
etc) for delivery by Network Rail on site in Autumn 2021.  

2.32. TfGM are also progressing (in collaboration with Network Rail) the delivery of 
3 new operational platforms in Winter 2022, this is a complex scheme that is 
being considered in parallel with the wider network capacity issues across 
Manchester

Mayors Challenge Fund 

2.33. City Centre Salford – active centres, corridors and neighbourhoods’ project 
was approved as part of tranche 5 and has programme entry status.  The 
£28m programme brings together a series of improvements, enhancements 
and new connections across the City Centre to ensure that neighbourhoods 
across the city are connected from Greengate through New Bailey & 
Middlewood Locks and towards the Crescent.  Schemes are currently in 

Page 34



9

design and business cases are being prepared.  These will then be submitted 
together with tendered costs to the GMCA for final funding approval’

3. Edge of City Centre and Urban Expansion. 

3.1. The “edge” of the city centre is expanding outwards as the Manchester/Salford 
urban core densifies and expands. This is the case around all points of the 
compass and there is significant development activity completed or underway 
from the Etihad Stadium in the East to the Quays in the West. 

3.2. There is however, still a huge amount of pre – development work required 
across this area especially within the areas where land assembly, flood risk, 
business re-location linked to business modernisation and infrastructure 
investment require intervention in to the market to deliver integrated and 
qualitative growth. 

3.3. In Salford, these areas include Cambridge Industrial Estate and Liverpool 
Street. These “edge of city centre” locations are the subject of future studies 
and are a priority for further city growth looking 5 – 10+ years ahead. They can 
be considered urban expansion areas and at this stage a range of 
fundamental issues concerning land assembly, understanding acquisitions, 
finding legal and effective ways to engage with the private sector start much 
earlier than actual development, infrastructure, connectivity, business re-
location and flood risk are all under the microscope. 

3.4. These areas represent the next opportunities for further city growth and are 
the subject of detailed research.  As further options are developed in the 
coming months, detailed propositions will be discussed with members.  

Crescent and University Masterplan

3.5.Salford City Council and the University of Salford have set out an ambitious 
joint masterplan for Salford Crescent tapping into the area’s unique potential 
to deliver a world-class place to learn, live, work and visit. The masterplan is 
divided across five development zones and offers a prime environment for 
infrastructure investment; research, development and innovation 
opportunities; alongside a modern residential neighbourhood.

3.6.The Masterplan vision and objectives were subject to consultation during 
August-September 2018 and revised to take on board views received during 
this consultation period.  A joint procurement and tender process between the 
City Council and University of Salford, to appoint a Private Sector Partner 
(PSP) to deliver the masterplan ambition, was formally launched in May 2019 
and is now nearing a conclusion.  It is expected a preferred PSP will be 
announced in the coming months.  

3.7.Over the next three years key priorities for this area will include: working with 
the appointed PSP to prepare a development framework for the Masterplan 
Area; securing planning permission for initial phases of development across 
the masterplan area; continuing to work with TfGM to agree future Metrolink 
connections from Salford Quays to Salford Crescent station; and, delivery of a 

Page 35



10

strategic amenity and connectivity green corridor from Salford Crescent station 
to Middlewood.

3.8. The Salford Crescent and University Masterplan is a detailed and complex 
area and appropriately subject to separate briefing in the summer.

Lower Broughton

3.9. Countryside Properties are currently on site at Phase 5 of the regeneration.  
Comprising 299 apartments, construction works are due for completion in Q4 
2020. 

3.10. The redevelopment of Mocha Parade is progressing well following positive 
advice being received from the Local Planning Authority (LPA).  Head of 
Terms with Lidl (foodstore) and the CCG (GP Clinic) are progressing well and 
it is hoped these will be agreed during early 2020 and presented to the City 
Mayor for approval.  It is anticipated that planning applications for both 
schemes will be submitted in April/May 2020.

4. Conclusions

4.1. This report sets out a snapshot of recent, current and anticipated development 
activity in City Centre Salford, one part of the City. Further reports will continue 
to be brought forward periodically. 

4.2. Significant progress has been made in recent years with major regeneration 
and development projects progressing and completing throughout the city 
centre.  Regeneration through development and public/private investment is 
central to the functioning of a sustainable city. An investment climate needs to 
be maintained to deliver housing of all tenures and business growth. This is 
the route to economic inclusion and helps the Council maintain a stable tax 
base to fund public services. 

4.3. This is not a time-limited activity. The case of Central Salford exemplifies this, 
where to realise the benefits that are coming through today and that will accrue 
in future years, much work was required by the Council in putting together 
partnerships to deliver growth. To realise the full economic potential for City 
Centre Salford, the regeneration team will continue to develop quality spaces 
and places for residents and promote exemplar and best practice throughout 
new development.

CONTACT OFFICERS: 

Kurt Partington, Head of Development – 0161 779 4913
Joe Costello, Development Manager 0161 793 2543  

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS:

Not applicable. 

Page 36



11

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: 

The City Council has made significant investment in City Centre Salford to support 
continued growth of the City, this has included investments in developments such as 
Embankment 100 and continued support through the Development Trust Account with 
English Cities Fund.  This level of investment is set to continue into the future years 
with our continued investment and future partnerships to deliver Salford’s economic 
growth, a long term strategic priority for the City.  

The period 2018/19 reported a significant amount of investment with approximately 
£303m from the private sector, £1.9m additional council tax receipts and £373,000 
additional business rates receipts.  

The pipeline for development estimates further investment, over the period 2020/21, 
of a further £1bn from the private sector, £5.03m additional council tax receipts and 
£2.05m additional business rates

Regeneration Team 29/02/2020

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: 

Not applicable. 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: 

Ordsall, Broughton, Irwell Riverside, Langworthy.

Page 37



12
Page 38



13

Appendix 1 – City Centre Salford Map

P
age 39



14

Appendix 2 – Greengate Park Ph 1

P
age 40



15

Appendix 3 – Greengate Park Ph2 

P
age 41



16

Appendix 4 - Springfield Lane and Trinity Way Junction improvements 

P
age 42



17
Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



GROWTH & PROSPERITY SCRUTINY PANEL
DRAFT WORK PROGRAMME JANUARY TO APRIL 2020

Date (meetings to 
commence at 6.00pm)

Agenda Item(s) Lead Officer(s)

9 March 2020  Salix Homes – review of stock transfer agreement 

Item for information
 Development Update – City Centre Salford

Lee Sugden, Salix Homes

23 March 2020  Homelessness Update 

 Mayor’s Cycling & Walking Challenge Fund Scheme Prioritisation and Bidding Update.

Andrew Leigh/Janice Lowndes

Shoaib Mohammad

6 April 2020  TBC

April 2020 No Meeting (run up to elections)

Abeyance List
 Salford Crescent & University Masterplan – Partner Update (suggested 1 June 2020)
 Place End of Year Performance Update (suggested 22 June 2020) 
 Salford’s approach to Climate Change
 Greening the City (Greenspace Strategy/City of Trees)/Carbon Reduction Management
 Derive Update

Items for Information (suggested 1 June 2020)
 Greater Manchester Western Gateway
 Bridgewater Canal Update
 RHS Bridgewater Update

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 6



2

Portfolio of the Board: Membership (12 Members):

1. Physical regeneration
2. Business investment and programmes
3. Planning, housing and transport strategy and delivery
4. Pendleton PFI
5. Housing: (Citywest, Salix client and private)
6. Environmental sustainability
7. Climate change
8. To discharge the Council’s scrutiny functions as a lead local flood 

authority
9. To scrutinise the Council’s business plan and budget in this functional 

area.

Councillor Critchley
Councillor Dickman
Councillor R. Garrido
Councillor Hesling
Councillor Jolley
Councillor Lewis
Councillor Nkurunziza
Councillor Sharpe (C)
Councillor Ward
Councillor Weir
Councillor M. Wheeler

P
age 46


	Agenda
	3 Salix Homes - Progress against the Transfer Offer Document (Lee Sugden, Chief Executive, Salix Homes).
	Appendix A Offer Doc Progresss Update - March 2020

	4a Briefing Note on Bus Lane Enforcement.
	4b Development across City Centre Salford.
	6 Work Programme.

